
July 20, 2017

Agenda for Regular Meeting 
of the Board of Directors of the Palmdale Water District 

to be held at the District’s office at 2029 East Avenue Q, Palmdale 

Wednesday, July 26, 2017 

7:00 p.m. 

NOTES: To comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act, to participate in any Board meeting please 
contact Dawn Deans at 661-947-4111 x1003 at least 48 hours prior to a Board meeting to inform us of your 
needs and to determine if accommodation is feasible. 

Additionally, an interpreter will be made available to assist the public in making comments under Agenda 
Item No. 4 and any action items where public input is offered during the meeting if requested at least 48 
hours before the meeting.  Please call Dawn Deans at 661-947-4111 x1003 with your request. (PWD Rules 
and Regulations Section 4.03.1 (c) )  

Adicionalmente, un intérprete estará disponible para ayudar al público a hacer comentarios bajo la 
sección No. 4 en la agenda y cualquier elemento de acción donde se ofrece comentarios al público durante 
la reunión, siempre y cuando se solicite con 48 horas de anticipación de la junta directiva. Por favor de llamar 
Dawn Deans al 661-947-4111 x1003 con su solicitud. (PWD reglas y reglamentos sección 4.03.1 (c) ) 

Agenda item materials, as well as materials related to agenda items submitted after distribution of the agenda 
packets, are available for public review at the District’s office located at 2029 East Avenue Q, Palmdale 
(Government Code Section 54957.5). Please call Dawn Deans at 661-947-4111 x1003 for public review of 
materials. 

PUBLIC COMMENT GUIDELINES:  The prescribed time limit per speaker is three-minutes. 
Please refrain from public displays or outbursts such as unsolicited applause, comments, or cheering.  
Any disruptive activities that substantially interfere with the ability of the District to carry out its 
meeting will not be permitted and offenders will be requested to leave the meeting. (PWD Rules and 
Regulations, Appendix DD, Sec. IV.A.) 

Each item on the agenda shall be deemed to include any appropriate motion, resolution, or ordinance to take 
action on any item. 

1) Pledge of Allegiance/Moment of Silence.

2) Roll Call.

3) Adoption of Agenda.

4) Public comments for non-agenda items.



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT    -2- July 20, 2017 

5) Presentations:

5.1) None at this time.

6) Action Items - Consent Calendar (The public shall have an opportunity to comment on
any action item on the Consent Calendar as the Consent Calendar is considered
collectively by the Board of Directors prior to action being taken.)

6.1) Approval of minutes of special meeting held July 10, 2017.

6.2) Approval of minutes of regular meeting held July 12, 2017.

6.3) Payment of bills for July 26, 2017.

7) Action Items – Action Calendar (The public shall have an opportunity to comment on
any action item as each item is considered by the Board of Directors prior to action being
taken.)

7.1) Status report on Cash Flow Statement and Current Cash Balances as of May, 2017.
(Financial Advisor Egan/Finance Committee) 

7.2) Status report on Financial Statements, Revenue, and Expense and Departmental 
Budget Reports for May, 2017. (Finance Manager Williams/Finance Committee) 

7.3) Status report on committed contracts issued and water revenue bond projects. 
(Finance Manager Williams/Finance Committee) 

7.4) Consideration and possible action on proposal for the preparation of the 2017 
Sanitary Survey and Drinking Water Source Assessment Update. ($49,773.00 – 
Budgeted – Operations Manager Masaya) 

7.5) Consideration and possible action on approval to hire a consultant to complete a 
grant application to the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation Title XVI Water Recycling 
Projects Under the WIIN Act. ($19,500.00, not-to-exceed – Non-budgeted – 
Engineering/Grant Manager Riley) 

7.6) Consideration and possible action on Contract Amendment No. 1 to General 
Manager Employment Agreement dated July 30, 2015 authorizing a 2.7% Cost of 
Living increase, authorizing a 2.3% salary increase, and approving an extension 
of the General Manager Employment Agreement to July 30, 2020. (General 
Manager LaMoreaux) 

7.7) Consideration and possible action on Outreach activities for 2017. (Public Affairs 
Director Shay) 

a) Announcement of 100th year anniversary events.

7.8) Consideration and possible action on authorization of the following conferences, 
seminars, and training sessions for Board and staff attendance within budget 
amounts previously approved in the 2017 Budget:  

a) ACWA Region 8 Program “Water Reliability: The Continued Value of
Local Projects” to be held August 24, 2017 in Los Angeles.

b) Itron Utility Week Conference to be held October 13 – 20, 2017 in
Houston, Texas.



 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT                      -3-                                       July 20, 2017 
 
 

c) AWWA Water Quality Technology Conference 2017 to be held 
November 12 – 16, 2017 in Portland, Oregon. 

8) Information Items:   

 8.1) Reports of Directors:   

  a) President’s Report. 

  b) Meetings/General Report. 

c) Standing Committee/Assignment Reports (Chair): 

1) Finance Committee 

 8.2) Report of General Manager.  

 a) July, 2017 written report of activities through June, 2017. 

 8.3) Report of General Counsel. 

9) Public comments on closed session agenda matters. 

10) Break prior to closed session. 

11) Closed session under: 

11.1) Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation: A closed session will be held, 
pursuant to Government Code §54956.9 (d)(1), to confer with Special Litigation 
Counsel regarding existing litigation to which the District is a party.  The title of such 
litigation is as follows: Antelope Valley Ground Water Cases. 

12) Public report of any action taken in closed session. 

13) Board members' requests for future agenda items. 

14) Adjournment. 
 
 

 
DENNIS D. LaMOREAUX,  
General Manager 
 
DDL/dd 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



P A L M D A L E    
W A T E R   D I S T R I C T 

B O A R D   M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE: July 20, 2017  July 26, 2017 

TO:  BOARD OF DIRECTORS  Board Meeting 

FROM: Mr. Bob Egan, Financial Advisor 

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.1 – STATUS REPORT ON CASH FLOW STATEMENT  
AND CURRENT CASH BALANCES AS OF MAY, 2017. 

Attached is the Investment Funds Report and current cash balance as of May 31, 2017.  The 
reports will be reviewed in detail at the Board meeting. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.1



May 2017 April 2017

1-00-0103-100 Citizens - Checking 398,060.92          50,574.08            
1-00-0103-200 Citizens - Refund - 12.00 
1-00-0103-300 Citizens - Merchant 93,708.32            57,769.65            

Bank Total 491,769.24          108,355.73          

1-00-0110-000 300.00                  300.00                  
1-00-0115-000 5,400.00               5,400.00               

497,469.24         114,055.73         

1-00-0135-000 Local Agency Investment Fund Acct. Total 11,867.14           11,844.48           

1-00-0120-000 UBS Money Market Account General (SS 11469)
4,031,486.79       3,573,930.35       

250,000.00          250,000.00          

Accrued interest 10,346.74            9,231.73               
4,291,833.53       3,833,162.08       

CUSIP # Issuer Rate PAR

912828C24 US Treasury Note 02/28/2019 1.490 1,000,000  1,003,980.00       1,004,380.00       

1,000,000  1,003,980.00       1,004,380.00       

Issuer Rate Face Value

1 Discover Bank 05/02/2017 1.730 240,000      - 240,007.20          
2 Merrick Bank 06/12/2017 1.000 100,000      100,010.00          100,040.00          
3 Level One Bank 06/19/2017 0.650 101,000      101,010.10          101,032.32          
4 GE Cap Retail Bank 06/22/2017 1.780 200,000      200,124.00          200,306.00          
5 Capitol One Bank 08/14/2017 1.200 240,000      240,158.40          240,280.80          
6 Triumph Bank 09/26/2017 0.800 200,000      200,100.00          200,200.00          
7 MB Finl Bank 10/26/2017 0.850 200,000      199,898.00          199,974.00          
8 Bank United Miami 11/21/2017 1.200 240,000      240,228.00          240,400.80          
9 Compass Bank 12/11/2017 1.300 200,000      200,278.00          - 

10 Goldman Sachs Bank NY 01/29/2018 1.350 240,000      240,410.40          240,631.20          
11 Stearns Bank 05/03/2018 1.050 240,000      239,680.80          - 
12 Midland States Bank 02/28/2019 1.400 240,000      239,781.60          239,731.20          
13 Key Bank 03/29/2019 1.500 240,000      240,098.40          240,033.60          

2,681,000  2,441,777.70       2,242,637.12       

Acct. Total 7,737,591.23     7,080,179.20       

1-00-1110-000 UBS Money Market Account Capital (SS 11475)

250,000.00          250,000.00          
463,608.87          427,309.44          

Acct. Total 713,608.87         677,309.44         

1-00-0125-000 UBS Access Account General (SS 11432)
53,936.21            47,751.86            

- - 

Accrued interest 20,619.74            19,192.71            
74,555.95            66,944.57            

CUSIP # Issuer Rate PAR

912828XF2 US Treasury Note 06/15/2018 1.125 1,000,000  999,220.00          999,610.00          
912828KD1 US Treasury Note 02/15/2019 2.610 1,500,000  1,537,845.00       1,539,840.00       
912828P53 US Treasury Note 02/15/2019 0.750 1,000,000  991,560.00          991,170.00          

3,500,000  3,528,625.00       3,530,620.00       

Issuer Rate Face Value

BMW Bank 11/15/2018 1.960 240,000 242,208.00          242,361.60          
La Salle Bank 03/01/2019 1.350 240,000 239,572.80          239,510.40          
American Express 04/29/2019 1.440 240,000 240,801.60          240,734.40          
Synchrony Bank 04/14/2020 1.850 240,000 241,315.20          241,394.40          
JP Morgan Chase Bank 11/18/2020 1.600 240,000 234,957.60          235,053.60          
Bank of Baroda NY 11/23/2020 1.600 77,000 75,420.73            75,454.61            
Comenity Cap Bank 01/19/2021 1.900 163,000 165,378.17          165,586.81          

1,440,000  1,439,654.10       1,440,095.82       

Acct. Total 5,042,835.05     5,037,660.39       

13,505,902.29  12,806,993.51    

1-00-1121-000 UBS Rate Stabilization Fund (SS 24016) - District Restricted

1,674.98               1,398.82               
UBS RMA Government Portfolio - - 

Accrued interest 1,688.54               1,335.44               
3,363.52               2,734.26               

Issuer Rate Face Value

Webbank UT US 12/19/2018 1.400 240,000    240,028.80         240,050.40         
Ally Bank UT US 12/24/2018 1.500 240,000    240,381.60         240,417.60         

480,000      480,410.40          480,468.00          

Acct. Total 483,773.92         483,202.26         

14,487,145.45  13,404,251.50    

Increase (Decrease) in Funds 1,082,893.95     

1-00-1130-000 2013A Bonds - Project Funds (BNY Mellon)

Construction Funds 161,031.53         231,050.33         

GRAND TOTAL CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Certificates of Deposit
Maturity Date

Total Managed Accounts

UBS Bank USA Dep acct

Certificates of Deposit
Maturity Date

 Market Value 

 Market Value  Market Value 

Certificates of Deposit
Maturity Date

UBS Bank USA Dep acct
UBS RMA Government Portfolio

US Government Securities
Maturity Date

UBS Bank USA Dep acct
UBS RMA Government Portfolio

US Government Securities
Maturity Date  Market Value 

CASH ON HAND

TOTAL CASH 

INVESTMENTS

UBS RMA Government Portfolio
UBS Bank USA Dep acct

PETTY CASH

PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT
 INVESTMENT FUNDS REPORT

May 31, 2017

CASH



7/18/2017

January February March April May June July August September October November December YTD

Total Cash Beginning Balance (BUDGET) 12,888,144           12,591,298           12,125,487           9,811,099             10,852,433           11,101,609           10,602,468           10,269,501           10,564,441           8,273,846             8,294,757             8,535,850            

Total Cash Beginning Balance 12,883,393           13,217,019           13,413,293           11,445,512           13,404,252           14,487,145           13,293,331           12,260,193           12,280,463           9,625,208             9,973,773             9,845,196            

Budgeted Water Receipts 1,607,158             1,463,315             1,532,426             1,684,307             1,746,031             1,895,010             2,343,532             2,248,451             2,409,722             2,187,005             1,948,605             1,734,438             22,800,000          
Water  Receipts 2,124,125             1,731,155             1,636,067             1,616,301             1,941,874             1,895,010             2,343,532             2,248,451             2,409,722             2,187,005             1,948,605             1,734,438             23,816,285          
DWR Refund (Operational Related) 2,189  1,894  4,083 
Other ‐ 

Total Operating Revenue (BUDGET) ‐ 
Total Operating Revenue (ACTUAL) 2,124,125             1,733,344             1,636,067             1,618,195             1,941,874             1,895,010             2,343,532             2,248,451             2,409,722             2,187,005             1,948,605             1,734,438             23,820,368          

Total Operating Expenses excl GAC (BUDGET) (1,433,015)            (1,410,412)            (1,843,115)            (1,795,526)            (1,815,868)            (1,666,439)            (2,049,698)            (1,869,774)            (2,078,927)            (1,678,858)            (1,660,776)            (1,794,941)            (21,097,350)        
GAC (BUDGET) ‐  (121,780)               ‐  (220,000)               ‐  ‐  (65,000)                 ‐  (190,000)               ‐  ‐  (190,000)               (786,780)              

Operating Expenses excl GAC (ACTUAL) (1,433,733)           (1,497,820)           (1,373,052)           (1,613,786)           (1,633,249)           (1,666,439)            (2,049,698)            (1,869,774)            (2,078,927)            (1,678,858)            (1,660,776)            (1,794,941)            (20,351,054)        
GAC (169,477)               ‐  (169,477)               ‐  (91,712)                 (91,462)                 ‐  ‐  (190,000)               ‐  ‐  (190,000)               (902,129)              

Prepaid Insurance (paid)/refunded ‐  ‐  (67,198)                 ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  (35,000)                 (200,000)               ‐  ‐  ‐  (302,198)              
Total Operating Expense (ACTUAL) (1,603,210)            (1,497,820)            (1,609,727)            (1,613,786)            (1,724,962)            (1,757,902)            (2,049,698)            (1,904,774)            (2,468,927)            (1,678,858)            (1,660,776)            (1,984,941)            (21,555,381)        

Non‐Operating Revenue Expenses:
Assessments, net (BUDGET)  671,050                260,305                14,650  2,077,790             758,290                11,325  77,225  130,500                ‐  ‐  132,500                2,518,797             6,652,432            
Actual/Projected Assessments, net  669,618                373,532                15,376  1,968,372             759,015                10,679  77,225  130,500                ‐  ‐  132,500                2,518,797             6,655,615            

RDA Pass‐through (Successor Agency) 396,503.97           200,000.00           596,504               

Interest 11,110  10,049  11,724  11,285  12,800  5,000  5,000  5,000  5,000  5,000  5,000  5,000  91,969 
Market Adjustment 28  (6,681)  (13,784)                 (2,145)  (4,920)  (27,501)                

Grant Re‐imbursement 37,500  178,000                215,500               
Capital Improvement Fees ‐ Infrastructure 4,035  54,662  41,701  11,528  62,500  174,426               
Capital Improvement Fees ‐ Water Supply 133,286                178,810                24,683  336,778               
DWR Refund (Capital Related) 76,319  37,319  50,000  50,000  213,638               
Other 4,421  11,311  29  15,762 

Total Non‐Operating Revenues (BUDGET) ‐ 
Total Non‐Operating Revenues (ACTUAL) 689,212                576,159                13,346  2,274,343             1,236,930             15,679  119,725                135,500                55,000  183,000                137,500                2,836,297             8,272,689            

Non‐Operating Expenses:
Budgeted Capital Expenditures   (238,494)               (214,207)               (166,000)               (246,000)               (560,041)               (315,000)               (195,000)               (120,000)               (145,000)               (328,000)               (90,000)                 ‐  (2,617,742)           
Budgeted Capital Expenditures (Committed During Year) (78,440)                 (115,485)               (110,000)               (110,000)               (137,490)               (10,000)                 (10,000)                 (571,415)              
Actual/Projected Capital Expenditures   (167,987)               (451,182)               (205,891)               (155,379)               (201,357)               (315,000)               (195,000)               (120,000)               (145,000)               (171,925)               (90,000)                 ‐  (2,218,720)           
WRB Capital Expenditures ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  (300,000)               ‐  ‐  ‐  (300,000)               ‐  (600,000)               (553,589)              
Const. of Monitoring Wells/Test Basin (Water Supply) ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  (100,000)               (100,000)               (100,000)               (127,490)               ‐  ‐  ‐  (427,490)              
Grade Control Structure (Water Supply) ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  (75,000)                 (75,000)                 (75,000)                 (6,750)  ‐  ‐  (231,750)              

SWP Capitalized (681,198)               (157,881)               (181,818)               (157,881)               (157,881)               (157,881)               (681,194)               (157,881)               (188,154)               (157,881)               (157,880)               (157,879)               (2,995,409)           
Butte County Water Transfer (750,399)               (751,304)               (1,501,704)           

Bond Payments  ‐    Interest (1,060,942)           (1,052,364)            (2,113,307)           
Principal (553,437)               (1,057,016)            (1,610,453)           

Capital leases ‐ Go West (2012 Lease) (17,296)                 ‐  ‐  ‐  (5,267)  (17,296)                 (39,859)                
Capital leases ‐ Holman Capital (2017 Lease) (89,477)                 (89,477)                
Capital leases ‐ Enterprise FM Trust (Vehicles) (2,392)  (2,660)  (1,692)  (2,339)  (2,339)  (2,339)  (2,339)  (2,339)  (2,339)  (2,339)  (2,339)  (2,339)  (27,796)                
Capital leases ‐ Wells Fargo (Printers) (7,628)  (3,687)  (3,687)  (4,412)  (4,104)  (3,687)  (3,687)  (3,687)  (3,687)  (3,687)  (3,687)  (3,687)  (49,324)                

Total Non‐Operating Expenses (ACTUAL) (876,501)               (615,410)               (2,007,467)           (320,011)               (370,948)               (1,346,602)           (1,446,696)           (458,907)               (2,651,050)           (342,581)               (553,906)               (915,209)               (11,905,288)        

Total Cash Ending Balance (BUDGET) 12,591,298           12,125,487           9,811,099             10,852,433           11,101,609           10,602,468           10,269,501           10,564,441           8,273,846             8,294,757             8,535,850             10,205,110          
Total Cash Ending Balance (ACTUAL) 13,217,019           13,413,293           11,445,512           13,404,252           14,487,145           13,293,331           12,260,193           12,280,463           9,625,208             9,973,773             9,845,196             11,515,781          

Budget 10,205,110          
Difference 1,310,671            

2016 Cash Ending Balance (ACTUAL) 12,534,672           12,719,333           10,275,232           12,340,454           13,316,414           12,675,338           12,028,366           12,724,061           10,784,100           11,041,695           11,034,719           12,888,144          

Indicates actual expenditures/revenues:

Indicates anticipated expenditures/revenues:

PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT
2017 Cash Flow Report   (Based on Nov. 22, 2016 Approved Budget) Budget 2018 

Carryover 
Information



P A L M D A L E    
W A T E R   D I S T R I C T 

B O A R D   M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE:  July 19, 2017 July 26, 2017  

TO:  Board of Directors Board Meeting 
FROM: Michael Williams, Finance Manager/CFO 

VIA:  Mr. Dennis LaMoreaux, General Manager 

RE: AGENDA ITEM 7.2 – STATUS REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, 
REVENUE, AND EXPENSE AND DEPARTMENTAL BUDGET REPORTS FOR 
MAY, 2017  

Discussion: 

Presented here are the Balance Sheet and Profit/Loss Statement for the period ending May 31, 
2017. Also included are Year-To-Year Comparisons and Month-To-Month Comparisons for both 
revenue and expense. Finally, I have provided individual departmental budget reports for the 
month of May, 2017. 

This is the fifth month of the District’s Budget Year 2017.  The target percentage is 42%.  Revenues 
ideally are at or above, and expenditures ideally are below. 

Balance Sheet: 
 Page 1 is our balance sheet on May 31, 2017.
 The significant change is an increase in our Current Assets of approximately $1MM.  This

is the result of receiving assessment revenue and RDA pass through payment.
 Note the offset in assessments receivable and the reduction in meter inventory with the

project completion.

Profit/Loss Statement: 
 Page 3 is our profit/loss statement on May 31, 2017.
 Operating revenue is at 36.5% of budget.
 Cash operating expense is at 38% of budget.
 Departmental budget for Operations is higher than target, reasons will be discussed later in

the report.
 Plant Expenditures is showing the correction as discussed last month after the accounting

adjustments were made.
 Depreciation is showing a huge bump for the month as we record the completion of the

meter project.
 Revenues have exceeded expenses for the month by $132K, and year-to-date revenues

exceeded expenses by $101K.
 Non-Operating revenues continue to outpace budget figures with more capital

improvement fees collected.
 Page 6 is showing the distribution of expense between labor and operations. Labor costs

are currently at 55% of total expenses with salaries making up 38% of that.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.2



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT 
VIA: Mr. Dennis LaMoreaux, General Manager -2-    July 19, 2017 
 
Year-To-Year Comparison P&L: 

 Page 7 is our comparison of May, 2016 to May, 2017. 
 Total operating revenue is up $206K, or 12%.  
 Operating expenditures are up $460K, or 34%. This is due primarily to increased water 

purchases. 
 Page 7-1 is our comparison of May, 2015 to May, 2017. 
 Total operating revenue was up $228K, or 13%.  
 Total operating expenses were up $527K, or 41%, due to same reasons for 2016, more 

water purchases. 
 Page 8 and 8-1 is a graphic presentation of the water consumption comparison for 2016 

and 2015 respectively.  
o Units billed in acre feet for 2016 comparison were up by 200, or 17%.   
o Total revenue per unit sold was down $0.17, or 5%. 
o Total revenue per connection was up $10.16, or 17%. 
o Units billed per connection is 3.24, or 17%. 

 
o Units billed in acre feet for 2015 comparison were down by 81, or 6%.   
o Total revenue per unit sold was up $0.56, or 20%. 
o Total revenue per connection was up $6.76, or 11%. 
o Units billed per connection is down 1.44, or 6%. 

   
Revenue Analysis Year-To-Date: 

 Page 9 is our comparison of revenue, year-to-date. 
 Operating revenue through May, 2017 is up $367K, or 5%. 
 Retail water revenue from all areas are up by $511K from last year. That’s shown by the 

combined green highlighted area.  
 Retail water sales, including the drought surcharge but excluding meter fees, is up $96K. 
 Total revenue is up $808K due to increased water sales and capital improvement fees. 
 Operating revenue is at 36.5% of budget, last year was at 36.7% of budget.  
 

Expense Analysis Year-To-Date: 
 Page 11 is our comparison of expense, year-to-date. 
 Cash Operating Expenses through May, 2017 are up $46K, or .5%, compared to 2016. 
 Total Expenses are up $634K,or 5%, due primarily to increased depreciation and increased 

water purchases. 
 
Departments: 

 Pages 14 through 24 are detailed individual departmental budgets for your review. 
 Page 19 is Operations Department budget. Note that there is increased overtime due to the 

need to share a rover with the lab for 3 months, also vacation and sick coverage.  We also 
did not budget correctly for the new State Water Resources permitting for community water 
system.  The permit this first year was $55K alone.  Finally, accounting adjustments for 
the wind turbine are still pending. 

 
 
 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT 
VIA: Mr. Dennis LaMoreaux, General Manager -3- July 19, 2017 

Non-Cash Definitions: 

Depreciation:  This is the spreading of the total expense of a capital asset over the expected life 
of that asset. 

OPEB Accrual Expense:  Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) is the recognized annual 
required contribution to the benefit.  The amount is actuarially determined in accordance with the 
parameters of GASB 45.  The amount represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing 
basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year. 

Bad Debt:  The uncollectible accounts receivable that has been written off. 

Service Cost Construction:  The value of material, parts & supplies from inventory used to 
construct, repair and maintain our asset infrastructure. 

Capitalized Construction:  The value of our labor force used to construct our asset infrastructure. 



























































AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.3











P A L M D A L E    
W A T E R   D I S T R I C T 

B O A R D   M E M O R A N D U M 
 
DATE:  July 19, 2017                 July 26, 2017  

TO:  BOARD OF DIRECTORS     Board Meeting  

FROM: Mr. Mynor Masaya, Operations Manager 

VIA:  Mr. Dennis LaMoreaux, General Manager 

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.4 – CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON 
PROPOSAL FOR THE PREPARATION OF THE 2017 SANITARY SURVEY 
AND DRINKING WATER SOURCE ASSESSMENT UPDATE  

  
 
Recommendation: 
 
Based on a review of the three proposals submitted, staff recommends the Board authorize the 
selection of the 2017 Sanitary Survey and Drinking Water Source Assessment Update proposal 
prepared by Black & Veatch for the amount of $49,773.00. 
 
Description: 
 
Source water protection is the first and foremost barrier required in establishing a well 
developed, multiple‐barrier protection and treatment plan for public drinking water supplies. A 
comprehensive source water protection program can prevent contaminants from entering the 
public water supply, reduce treatment costs, and increase public confidence in the quality, 
reliability, and safety of its drinking water supplies. 
 
Background: 
 
The Palmdale Water District (District) completed its first sanitary survey for the Littlerock 
Reservoir and Palmdale Lake watershed in June of 1993 in accordance with the 1986 
Amendments to the Safe Drinking Water Act (SDWA) Surface Water Treatment Rule (SWTR). 
The SWTR required watershed sanitary surveys and watershed management plans only for 
surface water supplies qualifying for filtration avoidance. The survey included a summary of the 
watershed and water supply system, potential contaminate sources, watershed control practices, 
and water quality information. Furthermore, the SDWA Amendments of 1996 established source 
water protection as a national priority. These amendments require a new, more comprehensive, 
watershed‐based “prevention” approach be applied to improving and preserving water quality of 
the public water supply source. The key elements of this Source Water Assessment Program are 
to protect surface water supplies, as well as safeguard groundwater supplies through the 
Wellhead Protection Program. 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.4



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT 
VIA:  Mr. Dennis LaMoreaux, General Manager July 19, 2017 

Since it was initially developed in 1993, the survey was updated in 1997, 2002, 2007 and 2012 as 
mandated by the State of California Title 22, Code of Regulations, Article 7 Sanitary Surveys, 
Section 64665, which requires all water suppliers to conduct a sanitary survey of their watershed 
at least once every five years.  

On May 25, 2017, the District issued a Request for Proposals to three engineering firms – 
Kennedy Jenks, Black and Veatch and Karen Johnson – Water Resource Planning for an update 
to the Sanitary Survey. Based on a review of the proposals, District staff recommends that Black 
and Veatch be awarded the contract. 

Black & Veatch completed the last four updates for the District and is very familiar with the 
District’s water supply sources and key elements needed to update the District’s Watershed 
Sanitary Survey and Source Water Assessment. 

Strategic Plan Initiative: 

Strategic Initiative 1.0 – Water Resource Reliability 

Budget: 

This is a budgeted item under Work Order No 12-400. 

Supporting Documents: 

 The 2017 Sanitary Survey and Drinking Water Source Assessment Update proposal from
Black & Veatch.



PROPOSAL FOR: 
2017 WATERSHED SANITARY SURVEY 
AND SOURCE WATER ASSESSMENT 
UPDATE 

Palmdale Water District 

29 JUNE 2017 

©Black & Veatch Holding Company 2011. All rights reserved.





Palmdale Water District | 2017 WATERSHED SANITARY SURVEY AND SOURCE WATER ASSESSMENT 

Update 

 
BLACK & VEATCH | Table of Contents 

 
i 

Table of Contents 
 

Table of Contents ................................................................................................................. i 

Project Background & Understanding ........................................................................1 

Background .................................................................................................................................... 1 

Understanding............................................................................................................................... 1 

Project Approach ................................................................................................................2 

Scope of Work ......................................................................................................................3 

Project Tasks .................................................................................................................................. 3 

Task A - Project Management and Review of Existing 

Information ............................................................................................................................... 3 

Task B - Delineation of Contribution Areas ................................................................. 4 

Task C- Inventory of Potential Contaminant Activities ........................................... 4 

Task D - Evaluate the Risk from Identified Potential 

Contaminant Activities and Conduct a Vulnerability 

Assessment ................................................................................................................................ 5 

Task E – Review and Evaluate Water Quality Data ................................................... 6 

Task F – Regulatory Overview ........................................................................................... 6 

Task G – Management Activities Review ...................................................................... 7 

Project Deliverables ..........................................................................................................7 

Project Team ........................................................................................................................7 

Schedule .................................................................................................................................8 

Fee ......................................................................................................................................... 10 

 

 

 





Palmdale Water District | 2017 WATERSHED SANITARY SURVEY AND SOURCE WATER ASSESSMENT Update 

 
BLACK & VEATCH | Project Background & Understanding 

 
1 

Project Background & Understanding 
Source water protection is the first and foremost barrier required in 

establishing a well-developed, multiple-barrier protection and treatment plan 

for public drinking water supplies. A comprehensive source water protection 

program can prevent contaminants from entering the public water supply, 

reduce treatment costs, and increase public confidence in the quality, reliability, 

and safety of its drinking water supplies.  

BACKGROUND 

The Palmdale Water District (District) completed its first sanitary survey for the 

Littlerock Reservoir and Palmdale Lake watershed in June of 1993 in accordance 

with the 1986 Amendments to the Safe Drinking Water Act (SDWA) Surface 

Water Treatment Rule (SWTR). The SWTR required watershed sanitary surveys 

and watershed management plans only for surface water supplies qualifying for 

filtration avoidance. The survey included a summary of the watershed and water 

supply system, potential contaminate sources, watershed control practices, and 

water quality information. 

Furthermore, the SDWA Amendments of 1996 established source water 

protection as a national priority. These amendments require a new, more 

comprehensive, watershed-based “prevention” approach be applied to 

improving and preserving water quality of the public water supply source. The 

key elements of this Source Water Assessment Program are to protect surface 

water supplies, as well as safeguard groundwater supplies through the Wellhead 

Protection Program. 

Since it was initially developed in 1993, the survey was updated in 1997, 2002, 

2007 and 2012 as mandated by the State of California Title 22, Code of 

Regulations, Article 7, Section 64665, which requires all water suppliers to 

conduct a sanitary survey of their watershed at least once every five years.  

UNDERSTANDING 

Under the State of California Title 22 Code of regulations, the sanitary survey 

needs to be updated again in 2017. In addition to updating the sanitary survey, 

the District would like to update the Source Water Assessment Program. The 

most efficient approach is to conduct the watershed sanitary survey update in a 

manner that is consistent with the State Surface Water Treatment Rule and the 

Source Water Assessment Program guidelines. Black & Veatch has developed a 

detailed Scope of Work to ensure that these goals are fulfilled.  

The Source Water Assessment Program must include the following elements: 

� Delineation of the areas providing source water for public water supply 

systems 



2017 WATERSHED SANITARY SURVEY AND SOURCE WATER ASSESSMENT Update | Palmdale Water District 

 
2 

 
Project Approach | BLACK & VEATCH 

� Inventory of the sources of regulated, and certain unregulated, contaminants 

of concern in the delineated areas to the extent practical 

� Determination of the vulnerability of each water source to contamination 

� Public education and outreach 

Black & Veatch realizes the importance of involving the public in the Source 

Water Assessment Program. Active community engagement increases the 

likelihood that the State’s source water protection programs will be developed 

and implemented once the assessments are completed. As part of our efforts, an 

executive summary section will be prepared that can be used for public 

information and outreach. 

The assessments should ultimately lead to development of a comprehensive 

prevention and protection program that includes monitoring contaminants, 

implementing management measures to control or mitigate sources of 

contamination, and contingency planning.  

Project Approach 
Our detailed Scope of Work outlines a plan that achieves the project goals and 

objectives in the most efficient manner. We have developed the approach to 

satisfy the following primary project objectives: 

� Meet the California Department of Public Health (CDPH) requirements for 

updating watershed sanitary surveys at least once every five years. 

� Complete the watershed Sanitary Survey Update in a manner that is 

consistent with the State Surface Water Treatment Rule and Source Water 

Assessment guidelines. 

� Combine the report with the updated source water assessment for the surface 

water supply. 

� Review water quality and regulatory compliance. 

Furthermore, our Scope of Work includes tasks that meet the following 

additional project goals:  

� Verify the delineation of the source water protection zones for the intake. 

� Conduct an updated inventory of Potential Contaminating Activities (PCAs) 

within the delineated areas and protection zones, rank their risk levels, and 

identify their locations on the assessment maps. 

� Evaluate the risk/vulnerability from potential contaminating activities to the 

sources of drinking water supply. 

� Evaluate the water quality data for the intake. 

� Evaluate the ability of the treatment plant to meet current and upcoming 

drinking water regulations. 



Palmdale Water District | 2017 WATERSHED SANITARY SURVEY AND SOURCE WATER ASSESSMENT Update 

 
BLACK & VEATCH | Scope of Work 

 
3 

� Evaluate the required level of treatment (log removal) for the treatment plant. 

� Review management activities undertaken over the past five years and 

recommend additional practices for source water protection. 

Scope of Work 
The following section provides our Scope of Services arranged in the 

approximate sequence of completion.  We believe that the level of detail 

proposed is consistent with that of the 2012 Watershed Sanitary Survey Update 

and CDPH expectations. The use of previous available data will be maximized to 

save the District time and money.   

It is our understanding that there have been few to no changes to the watershed 

since the 2012 Update, and that there have been no wildfires during this time 

either. Additionally, the District has not undertaken any changes in their water 

supply facilities since 2012. However for the past couple of years, the U.S. Forest 

Service has closed the Littlerock Creek Storage Reservoir to recreational 

activity. The District has indicated that it may be closed for the foreseeable 

future to allow for dredging of the reservoir.  This change will be considered in 

the 2017 Update.  

 

PROJECT TASKS 

Task A - Project Management and Review of Existing Information 

Project management will include the following key activities: 

■ Project coordination 

■ Prepare a schedule to meet the requirements of both updating the 

source water sanitary survey and source water assessment plan 

■ Review a District-provided mark-up of the 2012 Watershed Sanitary 

Survey Update and Source Water Assessment with all changes clearly 

indicated, as well as the last 5 years of raw water quality data.  

■ Conduct an initial meeting with District staff and CDPH to discuss key 

tasks and issues to be addressed to complete the updates to meet state 

requirements. Agendas and a meeting summary will be prepared.  Black 

& Veatch will provide an initial schedule and a list of data needed from 

the District. This information will be presented and discussed at the 

meeting. 

■ Perform a field survey of the watershed and existing water supply 

facilities with District staff 



2017 WATERSHED SANITARY SURVEY AND SOURCE WATER ASSESSMENT Update | Palmdale Water District 

 
4 

 
Scope of Work | BLACK & VEATCH 

■ Following the District’s review of the Draft Report conduct a technical 

review meeting with staff, prepare agenda, and distribute meeting 

summary. 

■ Monitor the project monthly with respect to budget and schedule. 

■ Prepare monthly progress summaries to be submitted with each invoice. 

Task B - Delineation of Contribution Areas 

Black & Veatch will verify the watershed boundaries developed in the 2012 

Sanitary Survey Update, which is an approximately 90 square mile area, defined 

as tributary to Littlerock Reservoir, Palmdale Ditch, and Lake Palmdale. Key 

activities to complete this task are described below. 

■ Locate the watershed boundaries with GIS using information and 

graphics contained in the previous reports, National Hydrographic 

datasets, and Los Angeles County eGIS resources supplemented by a 

desktop assessment of data available from previous updates and the 

District. 

■ Develop a GIS basemap, which will locate the water intake and other key 

features in the watershed. 

Task C- Inventory of Potential Contaminant Activities 

An essential element of the drinking water source assessment and protection 

program is an inventory of Potential Contaminating Activities (PCAs).  PCAs are 

any activities, facilities, or land uses that can be points of origin of significant 

contamination in the delineated source water protection areas. We will review 

the PCAs identified in the 2012 Update and provide an updated inventory. 

An inventory of PCAs will serve the following functions: 

■ Identify new activities that may pose a threat to the drinking water 

supply based on their potential for significant contamination of surface 

water. 

■ Provide information on the locations of PCAs that pose the greatest risks 

to the quality of the water supplies. 

The inventory will include: 

■ Potential point sources (septic tanks, underground storage tanks, small 

commercial and industrial facilities, etc.). 

■ Potential line sources (sewer lines, gas/petroleum pipelines, highways 

carrying traffic that may haul hazardous chemicals, etc.). 

■ Potential area sources (agricultural lands, forest management lands, 

etc.) 

■ Any other areas of concern as identified during the field survey. 



Palmdale Water District | 2017 WATERSHED SANITARY SURVEY AND SOURCE WATER ASSESSMENT Update 

 
BLACK & VEATCH | Scope of Work 

 
5 

The inventory will identify the source types and their locations within the 

watersheds and protection zones.  While conducting the inventory, Black & 

Veatch will rely on activities identified in the previous sanitary surveys, but we 

will collect data on new activities that have occurred in the watersheds during 

the past five years, and add any additional facilities required as part of the 

SWAP. EPA’s BASINS database will be used to develop screening-level source 

water vulnerability assessments with Esri’s ArcGIS analysis and toolsets.  The 

GIS-based evaluation will provide delineated assessment areas and the location 

of potential contaminants from known points of discharge, toxic release, and 

hazardous materials handling. We will perform the following key activities in 

identifying PCAs as part of the 2017 Update:  

■ Develop a contaminant source inventory.  Using CDPH forms, previous 

sanitary surveys, and data from the EPA’s BASINS database develop an 

initial list of Potential Contaminating Activities (PCAs). 

■ Complete the forms using a the initial list of PCAs above, data made 

available by the District, and a review of RWQCB files to document 

changes in the watershed during the past five years.  Extract and 

summarize information on any recent spills or incidents impacting 

water quality.  Only key activities that would have a significant impact on 

surface water quality will be included.   

■ Locate each PCA on the watershed  basemap developed in Task C. 

■ Summarize any changes in watershed activities during the past five-

years. 

Task D - Evaluate the Risk from Identified Potential Contaminant Activities 
and Conduct a Vulnerability Assessment 

Following completion of the delineation and contaminant inventory steps, a 

determination will be made of the vulnerability/susceptibility of the water 

supply to contamination.  A Vulnerability Assessment is an evaluation to 

determine the most significant threats to the quality of the water supply.  The 

evaluation will take into account the characteristics of the source and site to 

determine the effectiveness of physical barriers to contamination.  The 

vulnerability analysis will consider the type and proximity of water supplies to 

activities that could release contaminants. Key activities included in this task are 

described below. 

■ Review the Physical Barrier Effectiveness developed for the intake in 

2012 and update. 

■ Use CDPH forms to develop a matrix for the intake to assess the 

risk/vulnerability level.  The risk from each activity/contaminant source 

will be assessed as well as the overall relative risk to each of the water 

supply sources.  



2017 WATERSHED SANITARY SURVEY AND SOURCE WATER ASSESSMENT Update | Palmdale Water District 

 
6 

 
Scope of Work | BLACK & VEATCH 

Task E – Review and Evaluate Water Quality Data   

Changes in raw water quality data since the 2012 Update will be assessed. The 

focus will be on constituents that might impact compliance with the SWTR, the 

Interim Enhanced Surface Water Treatment Rule (ESWTR), the Long Term 2- 

ESWTR, and related future regulations. The review will also consider 

disinfection by-product (DBP) and DBP precursor data and impacts of the Stage 

2-DBP Rule. Key activities for this task include: 

■ Review water quality data files for the past five years. 

■ Plot data to determine seasonal and annual trends and compare them to 

the trends identified in the 2012 survey update. 

■ Develop recommendations for log removal objectives for the treatment 

plant. 

The following water quality data will be evaluated: 

■ Microbiological contaminants, including total coliform, fecal coliform, 

Giardia, and Cryptosporidium data, if available. 

■ Turbidity 

■ TOC 

■ DBPs and DBP precursors 

■ Inorganics 

■ Trace metals 

■ Other trace organics. 

Task F – Regulatory Overview   

Present and future regulations were reviewed as part of the 2012 Update. An 

update to this section will include new EPA and CDPH regulations promulgated 

since the 2012 Update, as well as new rules on the regulatory horizon.   

The Safe Drinking Water Act requires EPA to publish a Contaminant Candidate 

List (CCL) every five years of contaminants that are not currently regulated but 

are known or anticipated to occur in public water systems.  CCLs are used to set 

regulatory, research, and occurrence-investigation priorities within EPA.  

Contaminants of emerging concern contained in CCL 3 (EPA, 2009) include 116 

microbial pathogens, inorganic compounds, synthetic organic chemicals, 

hormones, and pharmaceuticals.  Current regulatory schedules call for final 

determinations regarding the need to regulate at least five of the contaminants 

listed in the CCL 3 by 2013, which may include one or more of the microbial 

pathogens listed.   

Contaminants on the horizon for regulatory action by EPA include fluoride, 

perchlorate, hexavalent chromium (Cr6+), carcinogenic volatile organic 

compounds (as a class), and nitrosamines (as a class).  New and revised 



Palmdale Water District | 2017 WATERSHED SANITARY SURVEY AND SOURCE WATER ASSESSMENT Update 

 
BLACK & VEATCH | Project Deliverables 

 
7 

Drinking water rules that are likely include the Third Unregulated Contaminant 

Monitoring Rule (UCMR3), Revised Total Coliform Rule (RTCR), Long-Term 

Revisions to the Lead and Copper Rule (LT-LCR), and Consumer Confidence 

Reports (CCRs).  The California Office of Environmental Health Hazard 

Assessment (OEHHA) established a non-enforceable Public Health Goal (PHG) 

for hexavalent chromium of 0.02 µg/L, which will contribute to development of 

a maximum contaminant level by CDPH. Potential generalized approaches for 

regulatory compliance will also be discussed. 

Task G – Management Activities Review 

Black & Veatch will review data provided by the District (as found in the mark-

up of the 2012 Update as described in Task A) on management activities 

undertaken over the past five years. The report will also recommend and 

describe control strategies that can be taken by the District to protect the source 

of supply. 

Project Deliverables 
The 2012 Sanitary Survey Update report will document changes in the 

watershed during the past five years and will include sections from the 2012 

report by reference where appropriate. Black & Veatch will provide the 

following deliverables: 

� Documentation of the source water assessment process, with required forms 

included as appendices 

� GIS-derived figures, based on Los Angeles County datasets, for the intake and 

watershed showing the zones of protection and PCAs, with copies included as 

appendices 

� Three hard copies of the draft report to District staff and one hard copy of the 

draft report to CDPH for review, comments to be incorporated into the final 

report 

� Six hard copies and one electronic copy of the final report to the District and 

two hard copies of the final report to CDPH 

� A brief executive summary that can be used in the District’s Consumer 

Confidence Reports for distribution to the public for education and outreach 

purposes, as well as an electronic version for web posting.  

Project Team 
The Black & Veatch project team, displayed in the chart below, includes highly 

qualified and experienced professionals who are committed to achieving the 

objectives and goals of this project. As the project management team, Jeff 

Neemann and Jim Rasmus will provide regional and engineering insight as well 

as overall project coordination. Aside, from Mr. Neemann, as our Principal-in-

Charge, the proposed project team is the same as that provided in 2012. Water 



2017 WATERSHED SANITARY SURVEY AND SOURCE WATER ASSESSMENT Update | Palmdale Water District 

 
8 

 
Schedule | BLACK & VEATCH 

quality specialist, Chris Tadanier, will again provide technical expertise on water 

quality issues present in the Littlerock Reservoir and Palmdale Lake watershed. 

Kristina Lecina, will serve as project engineer, and will be responsible for 

oversight and coordination of the technical aspects of the project, as well as 

overall production of the draft and final reports. Paul Rhine will provide project 

support as staff engineer and GIS analyst.  Since most of these key staff have 

served the District before we have not provided resumes; however, we would be 

happy to provide resumes upon request. 

 

Schedule 
The following summarizes key dates for this effort. This schedule could be 

adjusted at the request of the District to meet any specific dates required. 

Authorization of Contract – July 2017 

Kick-off Meeting – July/August 2017 



Palmdale Water District | 2017 WATERSHED SANITARY SURVEY AND SOURCE WATER ASSESSMENT Update 

 
BLACK & VEATCH | Schedule 

 
9 

Draft 2012 Sanitary Survey Update – October 15, 2017 

Client Comments Submitted – November 1, 2017 

Final 2012 Sanitary Survey Update Report – December 1, 2017 

Approval at District Board Meeting – December 2017



2017 WATERSHED SANITARY SURVEY AND SOURCE WATER ASSESSMENT Update | Palmdale Water District 

 
10 

 
Fee | BLACK & VEATCH 

Fee 

 

Principal

Project 

Manager

Water 

Quality 

Specialist

Project 

Engineer

Staff 

Engineer GIS Staff

Admin 

Staff Total Hours  Expenses Total Fee

Task/Rates ($/hr) 275 250 220 160 140 120 85

Task A.  Project Management and 

Review of Existing Information

0 12 2 8 4 0 4 30

Fee, $ $0 $3,000 $440 $1,280 $560 $0 $340 $263 $5,883

Task B.  Delineation of 

Contribution Areas
0 2 0 2 8 16 0 28

Fee, $ $0 $500 $0 $320 $1,120 $1,920 $0 $245 $4,105

Task C.  Inventory of Potential 

Contaminating Activities
0 2 0 8 40 0 0 50

Fee, $ $0 $500 $0 $1,280 $5,600 $0 $0 $438 $7,818

Task D.  Evaluate the Risk from 

Identified PCAs and Conduct 

Vulnerability Assessment

0 2 2 12 16 0 0 32

Fee, $ $0 $500 $440 $1,920 $2,240 $0 $0 $280 $5,380

Task E.  Review and Evaluate 

Water Quality Data
0 2 4 12 20 0 0 38

Fee, $ $0 $500 $880 $1,920 $2,800 $0 $0 $333 $6,433

Task F.  Regulatory Overview 2 4 8 4 4 0 0 22

Fee, $ $550 $1,000 $1,760 $640 $560 $0 $0 $193 $4,703

Task G.  Management Activities 

Review
0 4 0 8 6 0 0 18

Fee, $ $0 $1,000 $0 $1,280 $840 $0 $0 $158 $3,278

Task H.  Prepare Report 4 12 4 16 24 0 8 68

Fee, $ $1,100 $3,000 $880 $2,560 $3,360 $0 $680 $595 $12,175

Total Hours 6 40 20 70 122 16 12 286 $2,503 $49,773



Palmdale Water District | 2017 WATERSHED SANITARY SURVEY AND SOURCE WATER ASSESSMENT Update 

 
BLACK & VEATCH | Fee 

 
11 

 



P A L M D A L E  W A T E R  D I S T R I C T

B O A R D  M E M O R A N D U M  

DATE: July 19, 2017 July 26, 2017 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS Board Meeting 

FROM: James Riley, Engineering/Grant Manager 

VIA: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager 

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.5 – CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON 
APPROVAL TO HIRE A CONSULTANT TO COMPLETE A GRANT 
APPLICATION TO THE U.S. BUREAU OF RECLAMATION TITLE XVI 
WATER RECYCLING PROJECTS UNDER THE WIIN ACT ($19,500.00, NOT-
TO-EXCEED – NON-BUDGETED – ENGINEERING/GRANT MANAGER 
RILEY) 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends the Board authorize the hiring of Kennedy/Jenks Consultants to 
complete a grant application to the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation’s Title XVI Water 
Recycling Projects under the Water Infrastructure Improvement of the Nation (WIIN) 
Act of 2016.  Contract in an amount not-to-exceed $19,500.00. 

Background: 

In December, 2016, the Congress of the United States passed the Water Infrastructure 
Improvement of the Nation (WIIN) Act.  The Act provides funds for water recycling 
projects.  Funds are to be administered by the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation. 

On July 17, 2017, the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation issued a request for applications from 
previously approved feasibility studies.  The due date for applications is August 17, 2017. 

A feasibility study for the Palmdale Regional Groundwater Recharge and Recovery 
Project was approved in April, 2017 by the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation. The feasibility 
report was submitted by Reclamation to Congress in Washington, D.C. on July 12, 2017. 

Meetings were held in June, 2017 with U.S. Bureau of Reclamation.  Staff members of 
Reclamation suggested that the Palmdale Water District review the evaluation criteria 
and look at successful projects which had been selected for funding. 

One of the selected projects was submitted by the Inland Empire Utility Agency.  The 
consultant who completed the application was Kennedy/Jenks Consultants. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.5



2

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT 
VIA: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager July 19, 2017 

Given the success of this project and the short response time frame of 30-days, the 
Palmdale Water District would benefit by having Kennedy/Jenks Consultants prepare an 
application for the Palmdale Groundwater Recharge and Recovery Project. 

Strategic Plan Initiative: 

This work is part of Strategic Initiative # 1 – Water Resource Reliability 

Budget: 

This is a non-budgeted item in a not-to-exceed amount of $19,500. 

Supporting Documents: 

 Scope of Work



  300 North Lake Avenue, Suite 1020 
Pasadena, CA 91101 

626-568-4300 
FAX: 626-683-8938 

18 July 2017 

Mr. James A. Riley 
Engineering/Grant Manager  
Palmdale Water District  
2029 East Avenue Q 
Palmdale, CA  93550 

RE: Palmdale Regional Groundwater Recharge and Recovery Project (PRGRRP) 
Proposal for Bureau of Reclamation Grant Funding Application Assistance 

Dear Mr. Riley:  

Kennedy/Jenks Consultants (Kennedy/Jenks) is pleased to submit this proposal to provide 
Bureau of Reclamation Grant Funding Application Assistance. Palmdale was notified that it was 
eligible to apply for Title XVI Bureau of Reclamation funding.  Grant applications are due August 
17, 2017. 

Schedule 
Kickoff Meeting – week of July 24 
Draft Resolution and Letters of Support – week of July 24 (following kickoff meeting) 
Draft Title XVI Application provided by Kennedy/Jenks – August 11, 2017 
Comments on Draft Application by Palmdale – August 14, 2017 
Final Title XVI Application provided by Kennedy/Jenks – August 15, 2017 
Upload to Grants.gov by Palmdale Water District - August 16, 2017 

Kennedy/Jenks will perform this work on a time and materials basis under a Custom Hourly Rate 
Schedule based on 2015 rates, not current 2017 rates.  This continues the discount in annual rate 
adjustments applied under the PRGRRP.  Our not-to-exceed fee is $19,500 as presented in 
Exhibit B – Compensation. 

Please feel free to contact Meredith Clement at 805-973-5700 or me at 626-568-4302 if you have 
questions.  Kennedy/Jenks appreciates the opportunity to continue working to support this 
important project.  



Palmdale Regional Groundwater Recharge and Recovery Project (PRGRRP) 
Proposal for Bureau of Reclamation Grant Funding Application Assistance 
18 July 2017 
Page 2 

 

Very truly yours,  
KENNEDY/JENKS CONSULTANTS 
 

          
Meredith Clement       David Ferguson, PhD, PE 
Project Manager       Vice President 
 
Enclosures: Exhibit A – Scope of Services 
  Exhibit B – Compensation  
   
 



“Exhibit A” 
 

Palmdale Water District 
Palmdale Regional Groundwater Recharge and Recovery  

Project (PRGRRP) 
Grant Funding Application Assistance 

 

Scope of Services 
Background 
 
Palmdale Water District seeks funding for its Regional Groundwater Recharge and 
Recovery Project.  Palmdale was notified that it was eligible to apply for Title XVI Bureau 
of Reclamation funding.  Grant applications are due August 17, 2017.  A grant 
application under Title XVI Water Recycling Projects Under the WIIN Act consists of the 
following components: 
 

1. Mandatory Federal Forms (SG424, SF424C, and SF-LLL) 
2. Technical Proposal 
3. Environmental and Resources Compliance Element 
4. Project Budget 
5. Letters of Support  
6. Official Resolution 
7. System for Award Management Identifier 

 
Scope of Services 
 
Kennedy/Jenks proposes a kick-off teleconference to determine exactly what elements 
Palmdale Water District wants to include in the grant application.  Based on information 
from Reclamation, the anticipated maximum award will be 25% of project costs up to $3 
million.  To maximize grant funding its recommended that Palmdale apply for those 
project elements that can be constructed by September 2019 and which will cost 
between $8 and $12 million. 
 
Kennedy/Jenks will provide drafts of the Letters of Support and Official Resolution, but 
Palmdale staff will need to distribute the proposed letters of support and assure the 
Resolution is adopted by the Board of Directors.  The Letters of Support must be 
submitted with the application and need to be provided by August 14, 2017.  The 
Resolution must be adopted by and submitted to Reclamation no later than September 
15, 2017.  Its assumed that Palmdale has, or will acquire, a Grants.gov as well as a 
System for Awards Management account and will upload the grant application to 
Grants.gov. 
 
Using information available on the project (Title 22 Engineering Report, Preliminary 
Design Report, Environmental Impact Report).  Kennedy/Jenks will prepare a draft of the 
Title XVI grant application Technical Proposal, Environmental and Resources 
Compliance Element, Project Budget, and Mandatory Federal Forms.  Its assumed 
Palmdale will review the grant application and as part of the review provide the 
necessary signatures on the Mandatory Federal Forms.  
 



“Exhibit B”

Palmdale Water District
Palmdale Regional Groundwater Recharge and Recovery 

Project (PRGRRP)
Grant Funding Application Assistance

COMPENSATION

Proposal Fee Estimate (Assoc. Proj. Costs or Comm Charges as ODC) Kennedy/Jenks Consultants

 CLIENT Name:  

PROJECT Description: Grant Funding Application Assistance

Proposal/Job Number: Date:
 

T
o

ta
l

L
ab

o
r

A
d

m
in

. A
ss

is
t.

E
n

g
-S

ci
-5

M
 O

sa
ri

o

E
n

g
-S

ci
-4

B
 H

al
e

S
r.

 C
A

D
-D

es
ig

n

C
A

D
-D

es
ig

n

E
n

g
-S

ci
-4

C
 P

ae
z

E
n

g
-S

ci
-1

S
r.

 C
A

D
-T

ec
h

C
A

D
-T

ec
h

E
 A

lm
al

el

Palmdale Water District

P
ro

je
ct

 
A

d
m

in
is

tr
at

o
r

E
n

g
-S

ci
-9

D
 F

er
g

u
so

n

E
n

g
-S

ci
-8

E
n

g
-S

ci
-7

M
 C

le
m

en
t

E
n

g
-S

ci
-6

7/18/2017

E
n

g
-S

ci
-2

T
o

ta
l

E
xp

en
se

s

T
o

ta
l L

a
b

o
r  

+
 

S
u

b
s

 +
 

E
x

p
en

s e
s

January 1, 2015 Rates KJ KJ KJ

T
o

ta
l

L
ab

o
r

A
d

m
in

. A
ss

is
t.

E
n

g
-S

ci
-5

M
 O

sa
ri

o

E
n

g
-S

ci
-4

B
 H

al
e

S
r.

 C
A

D
-D

es
ig

n

C
A

D
-D

es
ig

n

E
n

g
-S

ci
-4

C
 P

ae
z

E
n

g
-S

ci
-1

S
r.

 C
A

D
-T

ec
h

C
A

D
-T

ec
h

E
 A

lm
al

el

P
ro

je
ct

 
A

d
m

in
is

tr
at

o
r

E
n

g
-S

ci
-9

D
 F

er
g

u
so

n

E
n

g
-S

ci
-8

E
n

g
-S

ci
-7

M
 C

le
m

en
t

E
n

g
-S

ci
-6

E
n

g
-S

ci
-2

T
o

ta
l

E
xp

en
se

s

T
o

ta
l L

a
b

o
r  

+
 

S
u

b
s

 +
 

E
x

p
en

s e
s

Classification: A
id

e

Total L
ab

o
r

O
D

C
s

O
D

C
s 

M
ar

ku
p

T
o

ta
l

L
ab

o
r

A
d

m
in

. A
ss

is
t.

E
n

g
-S

ci
-5

M
 O

sa
ri

o

E
n

g
-S

ci
-4

B
 H

al
e

S
r.

 C
A

D
-D

es
ig

n

C
A

D
-D

es
ig

n

E
n

g
-S

ci
-4

C
 P

ae
z

E
n

g
-S

ci
-1

S
r.

 C
A

D
-T

ec
h

C
A

D
-T

ec
h

E
 A

lm
al

el

P
ro

je
ct

 
A

d
m

in
is

tr
at

o
r

E
n

g
-S

ci
-9

D
 F

er
g

u
so

n

E
n

g
-S

ci
-8

E
n

g
-S

ci
-7

M
 C

le
m

en
t

E
n

g
-S

ci
-6

E
n

g
-S

ci
-2

T
o

ta
l

E
xp

en
se

s

T
o

ta
l L

a
b

o
r  

+
 

S
u

b
s

 +
 

E
x

p
en

s e
s

Hourly Rate: $270 $250 $235 $215 $190 $175 $175 $145 $130 xx xx $155 $120 $110 $90 $70 Hours Fees Fees 5% Fees

Task 1 - Grant Application Assistance

Preparation 4 24 8 4 48 8 96 $18,220 $190 $10 $18,220 $200 $18,420

QA/QC 4 4 $1,080 $0 $1,080 $0 $1,080

Task 1 - Subtotal 8 0 24 0 8 4 48 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 0 0 100 $19,300 $190 $10 $19,300 $200 $19,500

Total 8 0 24 0 8 4 48 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 0 0 100 $19,300 $190 $10 $19,300 $200 $19,500



 

 

Client/Address:  Palmdale Water District 
2029 East Avenue Q 
Palmdale, California 93550 
 

  
Contract/Proposal Date:  July 18, 2017 

Custom Schedule of Charges Date: July 18, 2017 

PERSONNEL COMPENSATION 
Classification Hourly Rate 

 CAD-Technician .................................................................................................. $120 
 Designer-Senior Technician ................................................................................ $155 
 Engineer-Scientist-Specialist 1 ............................................................................ $130 
 Engineer-Scientist-Specialist 2 ............................................................................ $145 
 Engineer-Scientist-Specialist 3 ............................................................................ $160 
 Engineer-Scientist-Specialist 4 ............................................................................ $175 
 Engineer-Scientist-Specialist 5 ............................................................................ $190 
 Engineer-Scientist-Specialist 6 ............................................................................ $215 
 Engineer-Scientist-Specialist 7 ............................................................................ $235 
 Engineer-Scientist-Specialist 8 ............................................................................ $250 
 Engineer-Scientist-Specialist 9 ............................................................................ $270 
 Project Administrator ........................................................................................... $110 
 Administrative Assistant ........................................................................................ $90 
 Aide ....................................................................................................................... $70 

In addition to the above Hourly Rates, a 0 percent Communications Surcharge will be added to Personnel 
Compensation for normal and incidental copies, communications and postage. 

 

Direct Expenses 

Reimbursement for direct expenses, as listed below, incurred in connection with the work, will be at cost plus 
five percent for items such as: 

a. Maps, photographs, 3rd party reproductions, 3rd party printing, equipment rental, and special supplies 
related to the work. 

b. Consultants, soils engineers, surveyors, contractors, and other outside services. 
c. Rented vehicles, local public transportation and taxis, travel and subsistence. 
d. Project specific telecommunications and delivery charges. 
e. Special fees, insurance, permits, and licenses applicable to the work. 
f. Outside computer processing, computation, and proprietary programs purchased for the work. 

Reimbursement for vehicles used in connection with the work will be at the federally approved mileage rates or at a 
negotiated monthly rate. 

Rates for professional staff for legal proceedings or as expert witnesses will be at rates one and one-half times 
the Hourly Rates specified above. 

Excise and gross receipts taxes, if any, will be added as a direct expense. 

The foregoing Schedule of Charges is incorporated into the agreement for the services provided, effective _______, 2017 
through March 31, 2018. After March 31, 2018, invoices will reflect the Schedule of Charges currently in effect. 



P A L M D A L E  W A T E R  D I S T R I C T

B O A R D  M E M O R A N D U M  

DATE: July 19, 2017 July 26, 2017 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS Board Meeting 

FROM: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager 

RE:  AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.6 – CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON 
CONTRACT AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO GENERAL MANAGER EMPLOYMENT 
AGREEMENT DATED JULY 30, 2015 AUTHORIZING A 2.7% COST OF LIVING 
INCREASE, AUTHORIZING A 2.3% SALARY INCREASE, AND APPROVING 
AN EXTENSION OF THE GENERAL MANAGER EMPLOYMENT 
AGREEMENT TO JULY 30, 2020. (GENERAL MANAGER LAMOREAUX) 

The attached Contract Amendment No. 1 to the General Manager Employment Agreement 
dated July 30, 2015 is attached.  Amendment No. 1 was prepared based on the outcome of the 
General Manager evaluation conducted on July 10, 2017 and authorizes a 2.7% cost of living 
increase, authorizes a 2.3% salary increase, and approves an extension of the General Manager 
Employment Agreement to July 30, 2020. 

Contract Amendment No. 1 is attached for the Board’s consideration. 

Supporting Documents: 

 First Amendment to the General Manager Employment Agreement between Palmdale
Water District and Dennis D. LaMoreaux

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.6





01184.0004/393036.3 -1- 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE 

GENERAL MANAGER EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT  

BETWEEN PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT AND DENNIS D. LAMOREAUX 

This FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE GENERAL MANAGER EMPLOYMENT 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT AND DENNIS D. 
LAMOREAUX (the “First Amendment”) is made and entered into July 26, 2017, by and between 
the PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT, an irrigation district organized and existing under Division 
11 of the California Water Code, a (hereinafter the “District”), and DENNIS D. LaMOREAUX, 
an individual (hereinafter the “General Manager”).   

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, on January 29, 2010, the Board of the District (the “Board”) entered into a 
five (5) year Employment Contract for General Manager of Palmdale Water District, which was 
subsequently amended effective January 29, 2011 and March 14, 2012; and  

WHEREAS, at its meeting on May 13, 2015, the Board agreed to a new General Manager 
Employment Agreement Between Palmdale Water District And Dennis D. LaMoreaux (the 
“Agreement”), to be effective July 30, 2015; and  

WHEREAS, Section 4.2 of the Agreement provides that if General Manager receives a 
satisfactory performance evaluation from the Board, then his annual base salary shall be increased 
by the percentage increase in the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers (CPI-U) for Los 
Angeles-Riverside-Orange County for the prior calendar year, plus any additional merit-based 
increase that may be provided in the Board’s discretion; and  

WHEREAS, the Board was satisfied with the performance of General Manager at an 
evaluation in July, 2016, and provided General Manager a 1.76 percent (1.76%) base salary 
increase from $200,000 to $203,659.87, equivalent to the CPI-U for Los Angeles-Riverside-
Orange County from June, 2015 to June, 2016 of 1.76%; and 

WHEREAS, on July 10, 2017, the General Manager and Board met in closed session to 
conduct a performance evaluation of the General Manager pursuant to Section 5.2 of the 
Agreement and for conducting an annual salary review pursuant to Section 4.2 of the Agreement; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Board is satisfied with the performance of General Manager, and desires 
to provide General Manager a 2.7 percent (2.7%) base salary increase, equivalent to the estimated 
CPI-U for Los Angeles-Riverside-Orange County from June, 2016 to June, 2017 of 2.7%; and  



01184.0004/393036.3  -2- 

WHEREAS, the Board also desires to provide General Manager a merit based increase to 
total a five percent (5%) base salary increase, which merit-based increase is 2.3% (2.3% + 2.7% = 
5%); and 

WHEREAS, Section 8.2 of the Agreement allows for any amendment, alteration, extension 
or modification to the Agreement in writing, signed by the parties hereto, and approved by the 
affirmative vote of three (3) members of the Board at a public meeting with the written consent of 
the General Manager; and 

WHEREAS, this First Amendment would: i) extend the term of General Manager’s 
employment from July 29, 2018 until July 29, 2020; ii) provide an annual salary increase based on 
CPI of 2.7% to be effective July 10, 2017 ($203,659.87 to $209,158.69); iii) provide an annual 
salary merit increase of 2.3% to be effective July 26, 2017 ($209,158.69 to $213,969.34); and iv) 
clarify the severance provisions of the Agreement to account for extension of the Agreement by 
two additional years as provided in this First Amendment; and  

WHEREAS, the General Manager desires to accept these employment terms as such from 
the District and has provided his written consent to the following terms and conditions in this First 
Amendment; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, District 
and General Manager hereby agree as follows:  

AGREEMENT 

SECTION 1.  The above recitals are incorporated by reference as if set forth in full herein.  

SECTION 2.  Section 2.2 of the Agreement is hereby amended, in its entirety, to read as 
follows:  

 “2.2   Term. Unless earlier terminated as provided in this Agreement, the 
term of this Agreement shall be for five (5) years commencing from and after the 
Effective Date and ending at midnight Pacific daylight savings time on July 29, 
2020 (“Term”).   

SECTION 3.  Subsection 3.3(2) of the Agreement is hereby amended to read, in its entirety, 
as follows:  

  “(2) Termination Without Cause Following First Year of Term.  If the Board 
terminates General Manager for its convenience, and without cause, following the first year 
of the Term of this Agreement, District shall provide General Manager with:  

  (a) six (6) months’ base salary, or, if there are less than six (6) months 
remaining in the Term, an amount equal to the monthly salary of General Manager 
multiplied by the number of months left on the unexpired Term of the contract (in 



01184.0004/393036.3  -3- 

accordance with Government Code § 53243.3, as further described in Section 3.5 below); 
and  

  (b) District-paid “COBRA” benefits (medical, dental and vision), to the 
extent permitted by law, as of the time of termination for the following period of time: (i) 
if there are six (6) or more months remaining in the Term, for six (6) months, or until 
General Manager finds other employment, whichever occurs first; (ii) if there are less than 
six (6) months remaining in the Term, for the number of months remaining in the Term, or 
until General Manager finds other employment, whichever occurs first (in accordance with 
Government Code § 53243.3, as further described in Section 3.5 below).” 

  

SECTION 4.  Section 4.1 of the Agreement is hereby amended, in its entirety, to read as 
follows:  

“4.1  Annual Base Compensation.  Effective July 10, 2017, the date of 
General Manager’s 2017 performance evaluation, General Manager’s salary 
increased by 2.7% pursuant to section 4.2 of this Agreement to Two Hundred Nine 
Thousand One Hundred Fifty Eight Dollars and Sixty Nine Cents ($209,158.69), 
consistent with the CPI-U for Los Angeles-Riverside-Orange County from June, 
2016 to June, 2017.  Effective July 26, 2017, to reflect an additional merit based 
increase of 2.3%, District agrees to compensate General Manager for his services 
rendered hereunder at an annual base salary of Two Hundred Thirteen Thousand 
Nine Hundred Sixty Nine Dollars and 34 Cents ($213,969.34) as may be adjusted, 
from time-to time, in accordance with Section 4.2 hereinafter, or as this Agreement 
may be amended.  Such salary shall be payable in twenty-six (26) equal installments 
at the same time as other Department Head employees of District are paid.  Such 
salary shall be adjusted for payroll taxes, workers’ compensation, and other payroll-
related liability costs.”  

SECTION 5. Except as expressly amended by this First Amendment, the underlying terms, 
conditions, and compensation of General Manager by District as and for his employment as 
General Manager shall be as set forth in the Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT has caused this First 
Amendment to be signed and executed on its behalf by its President, and duly attested by its 
officers thereunto duly authorized, and GENERAL MANAGER has signed and executed this 
Agreement, both in duplicate. 

 

Palmdale Water District 
 
 



01184.0004/393036.3  -4- 

______________________________ 
Robert E. Alvarado, President 
 
Dated:  ________________________ 

 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
  
Eric Dunn, General Counsel 
 
Dated:  

 
 
GENERAL MANAGER 
 
 
______________________________ 
Dennis D. LaMoreaux 
 
Dated:  ________________________ 

 
 
 

[END OF SIGNATURES] 



Hotel and Travel 
Accommodations

Event Name/Date:

CONTACT INFORMATION 

First Name Last Name Date

ACCOMMODATION INFORMATION 

Rooms and rates are subject to availability. Complete and submit this form as soon as possible to 
guarantee a room at the host hotel. In the event that the host hotel is booked, every effort will be 
made to secure a room at the closet hotel within comparable rates to the event discounted rate. 

Arrival Date Departure Date No. of guests Room Type

Do you require a smoking room?

Yes No

Do you need transportation from the airport to the hotel?

Yes No

Flight Number Time

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION/REQUESTS Staff Representative

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.8









STAFF CONFERENCE/SEMINAR REPORT FORM 

NAME:       DATE: 
POSITION:  

CONFERENCE SUMMARY: 

• TITLE:

• ORGANIZATION:

• LOCATION AND DATES:

• GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER:

SESSION/CLASS ATTENDANCE: CONTACT HOURS 
(HRS): N/A 

KEY POINTS/BENEFITS RELATING TO WORKGROUP, DEPARTMENT AND/OR 
OVERALL OPERATIONS: 

REVIEWED BY: 

SUPERVISOR: DATE: 

DEPARTMENT MANAGER: DATE: 

1

2

3

4

5

FORM REVISED 10-23-13

















































P A L M D A L E  W A T E R  D I S T R I C T  

B O A R D  M E M O R A N D U M  

DATE: July 20, 2017   July 26, 2017 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS        Board Meeting 

FROM: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager 

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.2.a – July, 2017 General Manager Report 
 

The following is the July report to the Board of activities through June, 2017.  It is organized 
to follow the District’s six strategic initiatives adopted in 2016 & 2017 and is intended to provide a 
general update on the month’s activities.  A summary of the initiatives is as follows: 

 

  Water Resource Reliability 

2015 Urban Water Management Plan, drought response 
Palmdale Regional Groundwater Recharge & Recovery Project 
Littlerock Reservoir Sediment Removal Project  
Recycled water allocation and use 

 

  Organizational Excellence 

Maintain formal management/supervisor training and development program 
Maintain competitive compensation and benefits package 
Employee wellness program; Succession planning 
Board/staff events to develop innovative ideas and awards 

 

  Systems Efficiency   

Water system Master Plan update and related EIR 
Reinvestment in aging infrastructure 
Investment, implementation, and training plan for new technology 
Computerized maintenance management software (CMMS) 
 
 

     Financial Health and Stability 
 
Pursue Federal and State funding opportunities 
Sustainable and balanced rate structure 
Maintain adequate reserve levels 
Maintain high level bond rating 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.2



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT       July 20, 2017 

 

2 
 

 

  Regional Leadership 

Create a regional best practices Antelope Valley partnership 
Enhance community partnerships and expand school programs in water education 
Emphasize the importance and long history of the District as a community asset 
Continue to evaluate District internship needs 

 

  Customer Care and Advocacy   

Customer Care accessibility through automation 
Evaluate, develop, and market additional payment options 
Improve customer account management tools 
Enhance customer experience through assessment of infrastructure, processes, and 
policies to maximize the customer care experience 

 

This report also includes charts that show the effects of the District’s efforts in several areas.  
They are organized within each strategic initiative and include status of upcoming State Water 
Resources Control Board’s (SWRCB) long-term conservation orders, 20 x 2020 status, the District’s 
total per capita water use trends, 2017 water production and customer use graph, mainline leaks, and 
the water loss trends for both 12 and 24 month running averages. 

 

 Water Resource Reliability 

This initiative includes conservation efforts, water supply projects, and water planning.  

Recent highlights are as follows: 

State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) Activities 

 The SWRCB is anticipated to replace the 20 x 2020 per capita reduction goals passed by 
the legislature in 2009 with new long-term water budgeting requirements.  These are 
explained in the “Making Water Conservation a California Way of Life” plan.  The 
District has submitted a comment letter and ACWA has been very active in the process.  
A concern at this point is whether the requirements and goals will be set by the SWRCB 
or the legislature.  ACWA’s and the District’s preference is the legislature. 
 

The District’s compliance with the 20 x 2020 law is evident from the chart titled 
“PWD 12-Month Running Average Total Per Capita Water Use.”: 

 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT       July 20, 2017 

 

3 
 

 
 

The District’s customers have cut their water use by 48.5% from the baseline number 
of 231 and met the 2020 Goal in early 2010. The current Total-GPCD is 119. 

Water Supply Information  

 The staff has planned water resources for 2017 based on the current State Water Project 
allocation of 85%.  The 2016-2017 water year is a record for Northern California as shown 
in the following graph. 

 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT       July 20, 2017 

 

4 
 

 The local water supply is also much better than in recent years.  Littlerock Dam spilled 
for the first time in years.  The District began transferring water to Palmdale Lake in April, 
2017 for the first time since 2015.  After lowering the water level several feet, Littlerock 
Reservoir was shutoff in May to take advantage of this year’s SWP supply.  Littlerock’s 
use will be re-evaluated later this year. 
 

 Water and Energy Resources staff prepared a plan for 2017 that incorporates available 
water with the anticipated water usage.  The following graph shows actual amounts 
through June and monthly projections for both production and consumption, based on the 
prior five years of actual monthly information, for the entire year.  It is anticipated that 
this year’s consumption and production pattern will continue to move back into a more-
normal pattern.  The 2016 chart is added in this report for comparison. 
 

 

 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT       July 20, 2017 

 

5 
 

Other Items 

 
 The Littlerock Reservoir Sediment Removal Project Environmental Impact 

Report/Environmental Impact Statement (EIR/EIS) is fully approved.  The USFS signed 
the Record of Decision for NEPA in June.  Work is now underway with the various 
regulatory agencies to obtain permits. 

 
The future steps for implementing this Project start with finalizing the grade control 

structure design.  A contract amendment for Aspen to design the grade control structure 
was approved by the Board in May.  Once the design is complete and permits are obtained, 
construction estimates will be made, financing options evaluated and implemented, the 
grade control structure contract can be bid, and construction tentatively scheduled to begin 
in late summer of 2018. 
 

 The public review of the Draft California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) EIR for the 
Palmdale Regional Groundwater Recharge and Recovery Project is complete.  The Final 
EIR was certified by the Board on July 13, 2016, and the Notice of Determination was 
filed on July 14, 2016.  The comments from the SWRCB Recycled Water Division on the 
Title 22 Engineering Report were addressed and returned for further review.  Construction 
of monitoring wells and a pilot recharge basin was awarded and the contractor is nearly 
ready to begin the work. 
 

 
 

 Organizational Excellence 

 This initiative includes efforts to restructure staff duties and activities to more efficiently 
provide service to our customers.  Recent highlights are as follows: 

 The electronic time keeping software is now being used by staff. 
 

 The 2016/2017 Strategic Plan Update is posted in the board room posters and brochure 
are now complete.  A Spanish translation has been printed and will also be posted in the 
Board room.  The recently adopted principles for conducting meetings will also be posted 
in the Board room in both English and Spanish. 

 
 An interpreter is provided upon request for public comments at regular Board meetings as 

an interim policy being in May, 2016.  The Board adopted this policy at the March 8, 2017 
meeting. 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT       July 20, 2017 

 

6 
 

 The District is working with other members of the Public Water Agencies Group to hire 
and share the services of an Emergency Preparedness Coordinator.  The MOU was 
approved by the Board and the action of other agencies is pending. 

 

  Systems Efficiency 

 This initiative largely focuses on the state of the District’s infrastructure.  Recent highlights 

are as follows: 

 Installation of security upgrades for the Leslie O. Carter Water Treatment Plant was 
awarded, a preconstruction meeting was held, and the work has begun. 

 
 New water main replacement projects will be completed within the funds available in the 

2017 Budget to continue the District’s efforts to maintain the water system.  The effects 
of the District’s past efforts in replacing failing water mains can be seen in the reduced 
number of mainline leaks.  This is illustrated in the chart titled “Mainline Leak History.”  
The total for 2016 was slightly above, 154 vs. 133, the numbers for 2015.  The 2016 
service line leaks remained fairly constant at 89.  While this is a vast improvement from 
2010’s number of 781 mainline leaks, replacement work must continue.  The mainline 
leaks through June, 2017 are 33 and service lines 37. 

 

 
 

 The budgeted meter replacement project of approximately 3,300 meters is complete. 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT       July 20, 2017 

 

7 
 

 
 Facilities staff is adding to its maintenance activities to incorporate pressure reducing 

valves and other facilities as their efforts can continue to be more preventative due to a 
lower number of emergency repairs. 

 
 District staff is preparing for the next water main replacement on Camares Drive south of 

Barrel Springs Road. 
 

 The positive effect of both water main and water meter replacement programs is shown 
on the chart titled “PWD Water Loss History.” 

 

 
 
 

   Financial Health and Stability 

 Engineering staff has successfully applied for planning grant funding for the Palmdale 
Regional Groundwater Recharge and Recovery Project and for the Phase II pipeline for 
the Palmdale Recycled Water Authority.  Application packages for further funding have 
been determined to be complete by the State.  A comment letter was also submitted to 
raise the priority of both projects in the State’s funding plan for 2017/2018. 

During a recent meeting with State Senator Wilk and Assemblyman Lackey, the 
District was assured they are working with the State staff to raise the priority of the 
projects. 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT       July 20, 2017 

 

8 
 

 The District received for a $75,000 Grant from the Bureau of Reclamation to assist in 
funding the Cash for Grass Program. 

 Water rate changes of 4.25% for 2017, 2018, and 2019 were approved at a Board meeting 
held November 9, 2016.  The resolution is also unique in that it included criteria that, if 
met, would allow for lesser changes. 

 Staff is working with the approved Holman Capital on a technology lease agreement to 
fund $830,000 in projects.  The low interest rate of 2.78% and ability to fund additional 
repair and replacement projects make this a prudent action. 
 

 Engineering/Grant Manager Riley has worked with the Bureau of Reclamation for the 
acceptance of a Feasibility Report for the Palmdale Regional Groundwater Recharge and 
Recovery Project and having it eligible for funding.  Mr. Riley and I visited the Bureau in 
Denver to discuss future funding opportunities.  The Bureau staff was very receptive to 
the project.  Our project is one of 30 from across the country that is eligible to compete 
for a portion of $10M in this year’s Federal budget due to the approved Feasibility Report.  
This competition was recently announced with an application deadline of August 17, 
2017.  Staff is requesting Board approval for assistance from Kennedy/Jenks in preparing 
the application. 

 
 
 

 Regional Leadership 

 This initiative includes efforts to involve the community, be involved in regional activities, 
and be a resource for other agencies in the area.  Recent highlights are as follows: 

 Activities of the Palmdale Recycled Water Authority (PRWA) and Antelope Valley State 
Water Contractors Association have continued. 
 

 The District staff continues to be active in the Antelope Valley Watermaster Board 
(AVWB) and related meetings. 
 

 District staff is active in the local chambers and is on the board of the Palmdale Chamber 
and GAVEA. 

 
 Staff developed a plan and budget for a year-long celebration of the District’s 100th 

Anniversary in July, 2018 that was approved by the Board on July 12, 2017.  The activities 
will be announced at this meeting.  The first main event will be an Open House on August 
5th at the District office. 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT       July 20, 2017 

 

9 
 

 
 Staff is completing work on draft by-laws for a Community Liaison Committee intended 

to better involve our customers in the District’s activities. 
 
 

 Customer Care and Advocacy 

 This initiative includes efforts to better serve our customers.  Recent highlights are as follows: 

 The new lobby kiosk is continuing to give customers another choice for making a payment 
at the District office at a reduced cost from the initial kiosk. Financial staff is also testing 
the new IVR for use. 
 

 The ability to make payments at 7-Eleven and Family Dollar Store is also continuing to 
grow. 

 
 A plan to update and improve the front entrance and lobby was approved by the Facilities 

Committee in March and work is continuing.  A rough kiosk is now installed in the lobby 
and is being adjusted for service.  It will host service ticketing for customers, a directory 
of the office, and a display associated with the 100th Year celebration. 

 
 Customer Care and Finance staff are being trained on the TruePoint software that will 

replace the District’s use of Starnik.  The planned date for going live with TruePoint is 
July 31, 2017. 


	AgendaRegular7-26-17
	Item7.1
	Item7.2
	Item7.3
	Item7.4
	Item7.5
	Item7.6
	Item7.8

	Column1_E5CCc2JOU4K6mYc2L0UW5g: ACWA Region 8 Program, August 24, 2017, Los Angeles
	First Name_dyoZTsSYj7AaZZORUqwHRg: 
	Last Name_wtE2EKuY4zimhkLHVtbImQ: 
	Date_6p6LNlgfSG2*iJ6ZkX0Lew: 
	Arrival Date_Jy6nv5X38KS1lyDYw-*uAQ: 
	Departure Date_uFmnQc6dxs4jn7s*g32RAA: 
	No_ of guests_eawk6KfUKuOVtwwqYtRuSw: 
	Room Type_3d9hSKz5JxmaE1lMDcG94w: []
	Do you require a smoking room?_T1xLc-mhfPXMrB8uElQlZw: Off
	Do you need transportation fro_3AGDkttQrvzy2tH4-0DfYA: Off
	Flight Number_zY9NGizqNvliyJFB0IEmxA: 
	Time_N18PoY40LFC6LCUUBXb4JA: 
	ADDITIONAL INFORMATION/REQUEST_0MGHwGHCfZmli5zV6WpKPA: 
	Staff Representative_0oojaa2pjuMFTNuQ7HxulA: 
	fc-int01-generateAppearances: 
	STAFF CONFERENCESEMINAR REPORT FORM: 
	undefined: 
	DATE: 
	CONFERENCE SUMMARY: 
	undefined_2: 
	ORGANIZATION: 
	undefined_3: 
	LOCATION AND DATES: 
	undefined_4: 
	GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER: 
	1: 
	2: 
	undefined_5: 
	undefined_6: 
	undefined_7: 
	undefined_8: 
	undefined_9: 
	undefined_10: 
	undefined_11: 
	undefined_12: 
	undefined_13: 
	undefined_14: 
	OVERALL OPERATIONS 1: 
	OVERALL OPERATIONS 2: 
	OVERALL OPERATIONS 3: 
	OVERALL OPERATIONS 4: 
	OVERALL OPERATIONS 5: 
	OVERALL OPERATIONS 6: 
	OVERALL OPERATIONS 7: 
	OVERALL OPERATIONS 8: 
	OVERALL OPERATIONS 9: 
	REVIEWED BY: 
	DATE_2: 
	DEPARTMENT MANAGER: 
	DATE_3: 
	1_2: 
	2_2: 
	3: 
	4: 
	5: 


